

1.0. Organizational Designation.

1.1. Organization Name.

The name of this organization shall be the Clark County Republican Central Committee herein after referred to as the CCRCC.

1.2. Non-profit Status.

This CCRCC shall be a non-profit organization.

2.0. Objective.

2.1. Objective of the CCRCC.

The objective is to elect Republican candidates to local, county, state and national offices.

2.2. CCRCC Policy on Endorsement.

2.2.1. Endorsement of Candidates.

The CCRCC may make a pre-primary endorsement of Republican candidates who are unopposed in a primary election after the filing date and who pass a background check. Elected CCRCC Officers or Executive Board Members may not publicly support or endorse another candidate for CCRCC Officer or Executive Board Member.

2.2.2. Endorsement of Issues.

The CCRCC may endorse recall, initiative, and referendum petitions or recall ballot candidates.

3.0. CCRCC Membership.

3.1. Qualifications of CCRCC Members.

3.1.1. Number of Members.

In accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 293, Section 143, each established voting precinct is entitled to have at least one member on the CCRCC, and no precinct may have more members than its current authorized number according to law.

3.1.2. Admitting New Members to the CCRCC.

Members are primarily admitted to the CCRCC by attending the biennial Clark County Republican Convention and submitting a membership application. Subsequent to the biennial convention, registered Republicans in Clark County may apply for CCRCC membership at any time. The applicant must be a registered Republican voter, and a vacancy must exist within the precinct.

Applications for membership to the CCRCC must be reviewed by the Political Director to ensure the applicant is a registered Republican voter and that a vacancy does exist within the applicant's precinct. If the new member's application is complete and a vacancy exists, the Political Director shall approve the application for membership. Approval or denial of membership must occur no later than fifteen (15) days after submission of the application to the Political Director.

3.2. Loss of Membership in the CCRCC.

3.2.1. Normal Term of Membership in the CCRCC.

Members of the CCRCC shall serve for two years or until the next biennial Clark County Republican Convention, whichever occurs sooner.

3.2.2. Termination of Membership in the CCRCC.

Any member of the CCRCC whose registration is canceled by the Clark County Registrar of Voters, except for a change of name, is considered to have forfeited his/her membership on the CCRCC and the Secretary shall declare the seat vacant. The Chair has the authority to suspend a member of the CCRCC pending resolution of any good faith dispute whether the member is or should be duly registered as a Republican by the Clark County Registrar of Voters. The Chair also has the authority to suspend and remove from participation at any meeting a member who, at said meeting, has violated the Bylaw or the Rules, or has otherwise acted, at that meeting, in an unprofessional or obstructive manner, which decision may not be overturned absent a 2/3 vote of the members present of the CCRCC at that meeting.

3.3. CCRCC Member's Changes in Precinct.

Members of the CCRCC shall not lose their membership because of changes in the numbers of registered voters in their precinct, changes or modifications to precinct boundaries or abolition of their precinct by the County Registrar of Voters. CCRCC members will not lose their membership for the reason of moving from one residence to another within the County. The Secretary will adjust the membership lists to reflect the current precinct organization and ensure that vacancies on the CCRCC are determined using the latest precinct boundaries and official registration affidavits and statistics.

3.4. CCRCC Members Addresses.

3.4.1. U.S. Mail Addresses.

Members are required to keep the CCRCC Office advised of their current mailing addresses. If correspondence mailed to a member is returned by the U.S. Post Office because it could not be delivered, no mail, including meeting notices, will be sent to that member until his/her address is corrected.

3.4.2. E-mail Addresses.

Members may elect to have CCRCC correspondence or notices sent to them through the Internet to their e-mail addresses. If e-mail is returned or otherwise rejected using the Internet, no additional e-mail, including meeting notices, will be sent to that member until the e-mail address is corrected.

3.5. CCRCC Meeting Sign-in Requirements.

Members shall sign the attendance record for each meeting they attend.

3.6. Members Absence at CCRCC Meetings.

Members who are absent from two (2) consecutive meetings will lose their membership to the CCRCC upon review by the Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary. Members who lose their membership because of absences at CCRCC meetings may apply for membership again.

3.7. CCRCC Representatives to the Nevada State Central Committee.

3.7.1. Election of State Central Committee Members.

Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes, and the Bylaws of the Nevada Republican State Central Committee, the CCRCC shall elect, by ballot, those additional representatives to the Nevada State Central Committee to which Clark County is entitled not later than the first regular meeting of the CCRCC following the County Convention.

3.7.2. State Central Committee Vacancies.

Elections to fill vacancies in any position of Representatives from Clark County to the Nevada State Republican Central Committee may be held at any meeting where the election to fill such vacancies is identified on the call for that meeting of the CCRCC. Elections to fill vacancies shall be conducted as Parliamentary Special Orders before all other items of business except the Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance and elections to fill vacancies in positions of CCRCC Officers and the Executive Board.

3.7.3. Absence at State Central Committee Meetings.

Any Clark County representative to the NRCC who fails to attend two meetings of the NRCC during their term, either in person or by recorded proxy, shall lose their Clark County membership to the NRCC. Clark County members of the NRCC who complete a proxy form for a NRCC meeting, and have that proxy recorded by the CCRCC office, will receive credit for attending a particular NRCC meeting even if their proxy was not used.

3.8. Financial Considerations.

3.8.1. Bank Accounts.

1. CCRCC General Fund. The CCRCC must establish a General Fund checking account with a bank located in the Las Vegas area of Clark County.
2. Ancillary Accounts. From time to time it may be desirable to establish additional CCRCC checking or savings accounts for specific CCRCC purposes. These ancillary accounts may only be established with the approval of the Executive Board.

3.8.2. Authorized Signatures on Checks and Other Withdrawals.

Withdrawals by check or withdrawal slips from any CCRCC Bank Account for amounts of \$400 or more must be signed by two (2) of the following elected officers: The Chairman, Vice Chair, Treasurer or Secretary. Checks for less than four hundred dollars may be signed by only one of these authorized officers. The Treasurer shall be bonded.

4.0. Elected Officers of the CCRCC.

4.1. Number of Elected CCRCC Officers.

The elected officers of the CCRCC shall be a Chair, Vice-Chair, Secretary, Treasurer, Precinct Organization Administrator, Coalition Director, and Political Director.

4.2. Term of Office for CCRCC Elected Officers.

The term of office for elected Officers of the CCRCC shall be for two (2) years or until the next scheduled election for Officers, whichever comes sooner. Each newly elected officer shall assume office immediately upon the announcement of the election result.

4.3. Elections for CCRCC Officers.

4.3.1. Schedule for CCRCC Officer Elections.

Elections for CCRCC Officers shall be held in July of odd numbered years.

4.3.2. Conduct of CCRCC Officer Elections.

Elections for CCRCC Officers shall be by secret ballot except when there is only one nominee for an office, at which time the vote for that office may be by voice. A majority vote is necessary to elect. When there are more than two candidates for one office and no one receives a majority on the first ballot, the two candidates receiving the most votes shall remain on the second ballot and all others shall be dropped. The specific vote totals for all candidates participating in a secret ballot shall be revealed and read to the entire CCRCC immediately upon announcement of election results, and thereafter published in a conspicuous place. A supervised representative of each candidate shall be permitted to review and count the ballots, after the official count, and before the official results have been announced. All ballots must be maintained for a minimum of thirty (30) days.

4.4. Vacancies in CCRCC Elected Officer Positions.

A vacancy in an elected officer position shall be filled at the first regular or special meeting of the CCRCC following the occurrence of such vacancy with at least a ten (10) day notice having been given. Elections to fill vacancies shall be conducted as Parliamentary Special Orders before all other items of business except the Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. A vacancy shall be deemed to exist when any officer is voluntarily elected as a voting member of the Executive Board.

4.5. Restrictions on CCRCC Elected Officer Positions.

No elected officer shall hold any paid staff position with a political campaign or serve as an elected or appointed officer, appointed member or employee of the State Central Committee or State Executive Board.

4.6. Recall of CCRCC Elected Officers.

4.6.1. Voting Requirements for Recall of Elected Officers.

Elected Officers are subject to recall by two-thirds (2/3) vote of the members present at a regular meeting of the CCRCC. Officers are also subject to recall by a two-thirds (2/3) majority of the members present at a special meeting of the CCRCC with five (5) days notice having been given.

4.7. Duties of Elected Officers of the CCRCC.

The officers shall perform the duties presented by these Bylaws and *Robert's Rules of Order*, the Parliamentary authority adopted by the CCRCC. The treasurer will be bonded.

4.7.1. Duties of the Chairman of the CCRCC.

The primary responsibilities of the Chairman of the CCRCC are the overall business planning for the CCRCC, to represent the organization to the Clark County community, raise money and conduct meetings. The Chairman will also supervise the Executive Director if that position is filled. The Chairman is also responsible to ensure the financial records of the CCRCC are subjected to an annual audit. The Chairman has the authority to create and appoint committees as necessary to conduct the business of the CCRCC.

4.7.2. Duties of the Vice-Chairman of the CCRCC.

The primary responsibility of the Vice-Chairman of the CCRCC is to handle the day-to-day business operations of the CCRCC. The Vice-Chairman is required to perform the duties of the Chairman if the Chairman is unable to serve for any reason.

4.7.3. Duties of the Secretary the CCRCC.

The Secretary of the CCRCC is responsible to prepare notices, calls and minutes for all regular and special meetings of the CCRCC and the Executive Committee. The Secretary of the CCRCC is also required to prepare and maintain attendance records for both regular and special meetings of the CCRCC and the Executive Committee.

4.7.4. Duties of the Treasurer of the CCRCC.

The Treasurer of the CCRCC is responsible for accurate and complete financial accounting activities of the CCRCC. The Treasurer must record the receipt of all funds, issue appropriate receipts, prepare all checks for signature, and present an itemized financial statement at all regular meetings of the CCRCC. The Treasurer of the CCRCC is also responsible to prepare and submit all financial reports required by either the State of Nevada or the Federal Government. The Assistant Treasurer is required to accomplish the tasks of the Treasurer in the event that the Treasurer is physically unable to perform his or her duties.

4.7.5. The duties of the Precinct Organization Administrator shall be:

1. Oversee the Clark County Republican precinct organization.
2. Develop a written plan using RNC materials as a guideline.
3. Establish and supervise a Grassroots Training Team.
4. Schedule workshops.

4.7.6. The duties of the Coalition Director shall be:

1. Organize and coordinate the activities of the several coalitions.
2. Schedule, plan, and conduct required coalition chair meetings.
3. Coordinate coalition activities with the Chair and outside agencies as required.

4.7. 7. The duties of the Political Director shall be:

1. Work with the County Chair, Executive Director, and E-Board to create the CCRP political action plan.
2. Oversee the implementation of the CCRP political action plan.
3. Coordinate political and grassroots activities with the Coalition Chairman, Precinct Administrator, and Executive Director.
4. To coordinate political activity with all outside organizations.

4.8. Employees of the CCRCC

The majority of the elected officers of the CCRCC may hire or discharge paid employees of the CCRCC. An Executive Director, at the service of and hired by the Chair, is a salaried employee who will perform the following duties: manage victory campaigns and conduct public relations with the communities and the CCRCC.

5.0. Appointed Officers of the CCRCC.

5.1. Number of Appointed Officers of the CCRCC.

The appointed officers shall be Assistant Treasurer, Legal Counsel, Communications Director, and Parliamentarian who must be registered Republican voters in Clark County.

5.2. Duties of CCRCC Appointed Officers.

The officers shall perform the duties presented by these Bylaws and *Robert's Rules of Order*, the Parliamentary authority adopted by the CCRCC.

5.2.1. The duties of the Communications Director shall be:

1. Develop a public relations and image-enhancing plan with a communication strategy.
2. Establish a positive relationship with media personnel.
3. Prepare press calendar and coordinate press and media events.
4. Prepare news releases.
5. Coordinate press efforts with CCRP political action plan.
6. Design and assemble press kits.
7. Arrange for earned media using direct involvement in community affairs.
8. Develop a newsletter, a letter-to-the-editor program, and a writing campaign using opinion-editorial articles.
9. Facilitate communication with outside entities, as well as communication within and between the Executive Board and Officers of the CCRCC.
10. Website, marketing, and database oversight.

5.3. Restrictions on CCRCC Appointed Officer Positions.

No appointed officer of the CCRCC shall hold a paid staff position with a political campaign or serve as an elected or appointed officer, appointed member or employee of the State Central Committee or State Executive Board.

6.0. CCRCC Meetings.

6.1. Location for CCRCC Meetings.

All meetings of the CCRCC must be held within the County of Clark, Nevada.

6.2. Regular Meetings of the CCRCC.

Regular meetings of the CCRCC must be held on the third Tuesday of every other month commencing in January of each year. Exceptions may include holidays and elections; in that case, the Chair will decide when the meetings will be held.

6.3. Special Meetings of the CCRCC.

6.3.1. Scheduling Special Meetings of the CCRCC.

Special meetings of the CCRCC generally require a five (5) calendar day notice to members and may be held:

1. Pursuant to a resolution passed at a regular meeting.
2. Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special meeting.
3. On call of the Chair by sending notices to each member at least five (5) calendar days prior to the meeting date.
4. On call of 30 percent or more of the Executive Board members or 10 percent or more of the CCRCC members by sending notices each member at least five (5) calendar days prior to the meeting date.
5. Only that business indicated in the resolution or call for a special meeting may be conducted at a special meeting.

6.4. Voting at CCRCC Meetings.

Only members in attendance at CCRCC meetings shall be entitled to vote. A member shall become eligible to vote at the second meeting that the member attends as a CCRCC member.

6.5. Open Meeting Requirements.

Regular meetings shall be open to the public. A non-member is not entitled to be heard as a matter of right.

6.6. Minutes of CCRCC Meetings.

Minutes shall be kept of every regular or special meeting of the CCRCC by the Secretary, or in the Secretary's absence by anyone appointed by the Chairman, and by every committee and they shall be open to the inspection of every member.

6.7 Quorum Requirements for CCRCC Meetings.

No business shall be transacted in the name of the CCRCC unless a quorum is present. Ten (10) percent of the members of the CCRCC shall constitute a quorum. There shall be no proxy voting.

6.8. Powers of the CCRCC.

The CCRCC may review the actions or exercise any of the powers or functions delegated to officers, the Executive Board, standing committees or special committees at any regular or special meeting of the CCRCC.

7.0. EXECUTIVE BOARD.

7.1. CCRCC Executive Board Members.

7.1.1. Voting Members of the Executive Board.

Voting members of the Executive Board will be two members from each of the seven (7) Clark County Commission Districts who represent and reside in that Commission District. In the event that a District has no candidates, the vacancy may be filled by election at large. The other voting members are the officers of the CCRCC: Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, Treasurer, Finance Chair, Precinct Organization Administrator, Coalition Director, and Political Director.

7.1.1.1 Executive Board Members that Move Their Residence.

If an Executive Board member representing a County Commission District moves to a District other than the one from which he or she was elected, that member shall remain on the Executive Board and a replacement from his or her District must be elected to the Executive Board at the first opportunity. This rule may result in an increase in the number of elected members to the Executive Board.

7.1.2 Non-voting Members of the Executive Board.

There are at least six (6) non-voting members as follows: the CCRCC Assistant Treasurer, the CCRCC Legal Counsel, the Communications Director, the CCRCC Parliamentarian, the immediate past CCRCC Chair, and one Republican State Senator, one Republican State Assemblyperson who have been elected from Clark County and selected by their peers from Clark County.

7.1.3. Restrictions on Executive Board Members.

No member of the Executive Board shall be employed by the Clark County or Nevada State Central Committee.

7.1.4. Chairman Voting at Executive Board Meetings.

The Chairman shall not vote upon a motion except to make or break a tie.

7.1.5. Registered Voter Requirements.

All members of the Executive Board shall be registered Republican voters in Clark County.

7.2. Term of Membership to the Executive Board.

Elected or appointed members of the Executive Board shall serve an approximately two (2) year term ending with the biennial Clark County Republican Convention following their election or appointment. CCRCC members may be elected or appointed to the Executive Board for more than one term.

7.3. Quorum Requirements for Executive Board Meetings.

The presence of twenty-five percent of the voting members of the Executive Board shall constitute a quorum. A quorum may transact all business. The Executive Board meets on the first Tuesday of each month. If that date is a holiday or an election, the Executive Board may meet on any later date determined by the Chair.

7.4. Special Meetings of the Executive Board.

The Executive Board shall meet on call of the Chair with at least 24 hours written or oral notice to each member. Any six (6) or more members of the Executive Board may request a special meeting by notifying each member at least five (5) calendar days prior to the meeting date.

7.5. Executive Board Reports.

The Executive Board shall report its activities at the next regular or special meeting of the CCRCC.

7.6. Powers of the CCRCC Executive Board.

Between meetings of the CCRCC, the Executive Board shall possess and may exercise all of the powers of the CCRCC in the management and direction of all the affairs and business of the CCRCC in such manner as they deem for its best interests except that they shall not perform any function which is by law to be done or performed by the CCRCC. The CCRCC may, by resolution, restrict or limit any and all powers of the Executive Board.

7.7. Powers of the Chairman of the Executive Board.

During the intervals between meetings of the Executive Board, the CCRCC Chairman shall possess and may exercise the powers of the Executive Board except as to those matters for which the Executive Board has expressly retained authority.

7.8. Loss of Membership to the CCRCC Executive Board.

Any voting member of the Executive Board who fails to attend 2 (two) consecutive meetings of the Executive Board may be terminated as a member of the Board based on the discretion of the Chairman. Members who miss meetings due to illness, work requirements, or other reason deemed acceptable by the Chairman may retain their positions provided they miss no more than three meetings in a row. Executive Board members so terminated may be reelected.

7.9. Executive Board Vacancies.

7.9.1 Filling Executive Board Vacancies.

Vacancies on the Executive Board shall be filled by election at any regular or special meeting of the CCRCC at which the proper advance written notice has been given; and shall be filled in such manner as to preserve the make-up of the Executive Board set forth in paragraph 7.1.1.

7.9.2. Elections to Fill Executive Board Vacancies

Elections to fill vacancies shall be conducted as parliamentary Special Orders before all other business except the Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance, and elections to fill a vacancy in an elected officer position. If any Executive Board voting member is elected voluntarily to a CCRCC officer position, then a vacancy immediately shall be deemed to exist relative to that member's prior Executive Board position.

7.10. Spouses on the Executive Board.

No spouse of a person currently on the Executive Board shall be nominated or elected during any overlapping portion of a term to, or serve any overlapping portion of a term in, a position on the Executive Board.

7.11. Recall of Executive Board Members.

7.11.1. Voting Requirements for Recall of Executive Board Members.

Members of the Executive Board elected by the CCRCC or by the biennial Clark County Republican Convention, are subject to recall by a two thirds (2/3) vote at a regular or special meeting of the CCRCC where proper written notice has been given to all members of the CCRCC.

7.11.2. Recall Elections for CCRCC Executive Board Members.

An election shall be held to recall or retain a member of the Executive Board elected by either the CCRCC or the biennial Clark County Republican Convention upon receipt by the Chairman of a petition or letters bearing the signature and precinct numbers of at least ten (10) percent of the membership of the CCRCC.

7.12. Executive Board Elections.

Elections of members of the Executive Board shall be in the same manners as provided in paragraph 4.3.2.

7.13. Executive Board Duties.

It is the goal of the Executive Board to dedicate at a sufficient amount of time and volunteer service to the Party to achieve the objectives as set forth in Paragraph 2.1 above.

8.0. County Republican Conventions and Standing Committees.

The number of delegates to the biennial County Convention shall be consistent with the requirements in these bylaws related to the number of members to the CCRCC. The CCRCC must hold precinct meetings in preparation for the biennial convention in a manner to be determined by the Executive Board.

8.1. Adoption of Preliminary Biennial Convention Rules.

During the regularly scheduled meeting of each November of an odd numbered year, the CCRCC shall consider as Special Orders, the adoption of the preliminary rules to be applied to the conduct of precinct meetings, credentials verification, challenges and seating of delegates to the biennial Clark County Republican Convention, which rules shall be in force until such time as the convention has adopted its first credentials report.

8.2. CCRCC Standing Committees.

To fulfill the requirements of Nevada Revised Statute, there shall be standing committees on Credentials, Rules, Bylaws, Platform, Resolutions, and Site and Facility Arrangements. The members of these committees shall be appointed and/or removed by the Chairman, with the advice and consent of the Officers.” The Chairman has the sole discretion to determine the size of these committees.

8.2.1. Duties of the Standing Committee on Credentials.

The standing committee on credentials shall prepare and issue the public notices of precinct meetings, the election certificates for delegates and alternates to the county convention, and administer the filing of challenges to credentials.

8.2.2. Duties of the Standing Committee on Rules.

The standing committee on rules shall prepare revisions of, and amendments to, the preliminary rules which are to be adopted by the November meeting of the CCRCC or at the biennial Clark County Republican Convention.

8.2.3. Duties of the Standing Committee on Bylaws.

The standing committee on bylaws shall prepare revisions of amendments to these bylaws to be adopted at any meeting of the CCRCC where proper notice has been given, or to be referred to the biennial Clark County Republican Convention.

8.2.4. Duties of Standing Committee on Platform.

The standing committee on platform shall assess the vital issues of the day, in the light of Republican principles, to inform the membership, public news media and the general public of the policy viewpoints of the Republican Party of Clark County, or to refer such to the biennial Clark County Republican Convention.

8.2.5. Duties of Standing Committee on Resolutions.

The Standing Committee on Resolutions shall assess the propriety of commendations, memorials, recommendations or censures of or to any person, group, organization, public agency official, or governmental body, to be considered for adoption by the CCRCC or to be referred to the biennial Clark County Republican Convention.

8.2.6. Duties of Standing Committee on Site and Facility Arrangements.

The standing committee on site and facility arrangements makes available to the CCRCC one or more suitable locations for the conduct of the biennial Clark County Republican Convention. Tentative selection of site(s) for the precinct meeting and the County Convention shall be made no sooner than the CCRCC meeting conducted as part of its organizing County Convention session and final selection(s) of a site for the biennial Clark County Republican Convention shall be made no later than the adoption of the Preliminary Rules as provided in paragraph 8.1.

8.3. Subcommittees of Standing Committees.

Each of the standing committees may organize such subcommittees as will expedite the business of the committee.

8.4. Vacancies in Standing Committees.

Any standing committee may be left vacant of membership where no business is pressing, but all standing committees shall be appointed and active from the time of the adoption of preliminary rules to the call of the biennial Clark County Republican Convention.

8.5. Vacancies in Delegates to the Biennial Clark County Republican Convention.

For precincts for which meetings were scheduled with proper notice, the CCRCC is authorized to elect delegates to the biennial Clark County Republican Convention if no one appeared or if the full number of authorized delegates was not elected at any precinct meeting.

8.6. Endorsements by the Biennial Clark County Republican Convention.

No convention of the CCRCC shall make a pre-primary election endorsement of one Republican candidate against another unless such an endorsement meets the requirements of Section 2.2.1.

9.0. Parliamentary Authority.

9.1. Robert's Rules of Order.

The current edition of Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised shall apply on all questions of procedure and parliamentary law not specified in these bylaws.

9.2. Parliamentary Motions Not In Order.

At all meetings of the CCRCC, the motion "To Table" shall not be in order at such times that the pending Order of Business is a report of an officer or a report of a Standing Committee, where such report has been specified in the Agenda, Notice, or Call of the CCRCC meeting.

9.3. Notice.

Any notice requirement as stated within the Bylaws, including but not limited to, written notice, oral notice or any other type of notice may be given and satisfied by electronic email as provided in Section 3.4.2 above.

10.0. Amendments.

These bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting of the CCRCC by a two-thirds (2/3) vote, provided the amendment has been included in the call of that meeting with ten (10) days written notice or read aloud in full at the previous regular business meeting.

11.0. Applicable Law.

No officer, agent or member of the CCRCC is authorized to take any action in violation of any federal or state election law in the conduct of CCRCC business, ballot security, voter challenge, or get-out-the-vote activity. Nor is any officer, agent or member of the CCRCC authorized to take any action in violation of the Order entered in Case No. A269546, Dept. IX, Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County, Nevada. Any action taken in violation of this provision shall be cause for recall or removal pursuant to these Bylaws.

11.1. Reservation of Rights.

The CCRCC reserves all rights to manage its internal affairs as stated by the United States Supreme Court in 489 U.S. 214, 109 S. Ct. 1013 (1989). **Adopted:** 4/04/1986. **Amended:** 1/20/1987, 11/17/1987, 3/19/1988, 4/07/1990, 9/18/1990, 5/2/1991, 1/20/1992, 5/18/1993, 4/08/1994, 9/19/1995, 3/29/1996, 3/17/1998, 3/27/1998, 4/22/2000, 5/16/2000, 9/16/2000, 3/20/2001, 5/15/2001, 9/17/2001, 1/15/2002, 3/09/2002, 1/15/2005, 3/18/2007, 3/8/2008, and 1/20/2009.